
JN ITED NATIONS

~CONOMIC
\·ND
OCIAL COUNCIL

COMMISSION ON 'l'BE STATUS OF WOMEN

Distr.
GENERAL

E/CN. 6/SR. 224
26 J\Ule 1956
ENGLISH

T6nth Sessj.on

SUM.MA.RY RECORD OF THE ~VO HUNDRED AND ~JENTY-FOURTH MEETING

held at the Palais des Nations, Geneva,
on Konday, 26 March 1956, at 10.30 a.m,

CONTENTS:

Economie opportunities for ~~men (item 7 of the
agenda) (eontinued)

(f) Working W8men ~ including worldng mothers,
with family responsibilit1es, and means for
the improvement of their position.

pages

5

(a) Preliminary memorandum coneerning a survey
of publi~~ations available on the oecupationa1
out1ook of women in the fields of hea1th,
social wGl~are, engineering and architecture
(E/CN.6/L.189) 12

(c) Report on the Emp10yment conditions of
older women workers (E/cN. 6/284) 15



E/CN.6/SR.224
l'age 2

Preseni:

Chairmnn :
111'9. R{)SSEL (S\orodon)

Hembers:

Mrs. CoRREA HOIù\.LES do APlJnCIO

Miss GIBSON

Mrs. CISELET

Mrs. NOVIKOVA

Mrs. CHU

Miss lwlAS
Miss BERNARDInO

Mrs. lEFAUCHEUX

Miss ROESAD

Mrs. BEN-ZVI

Begum .ANWAR fJfrlED

l'Irs. DEl1BINSKA

Mr. GIRON

Mrs. SPIRIOONOVA

Dame Lucile SAYERS

Urs. HfiliN

fus. SANCHEZ do URDAIŒTA

fus. m.mOVIe

Argontinn.

Australia

Bolgium

Byoloruosian Soviet
80cinlist Ropublic

Chino.

Cuba

Dominican Republic

Frnnco

Inclonosia

lere.cl

Pnkiatan

polc.nd

Swcdon

Union of Soviet Socialist
Hopublic s

Uni tod Kingdotl of Great
Bri tnin and Northern

Irolnnd

Unitod States of Anorica

Vonoz,uolu

YUf,oelnvin

Observers for Govornncnts of C't t J' b f t\10 Uni tod Nntion~:ù.n en .C~ or:J 0 1 -

l'Ir. S/illAIVA GUr.R.JlEIR0

Ur. STOYANOV

l'Ir. STRNAD

Miss CORCOS

Miss LUNSINGH-HEIrill

Brnz,il

C::cchonlovnkin

ltcly

lIotl'.orlnnds

Representativos of ~~i-::(:~."' i"r:d rl'o~ci('3:

Internc.tiono.l Labour OrCeniD8.tion l·irs. FIGlJEHOA

United Nations EducQtior~l

Scientific end Cultural Orc".ni:'l'.tiO:1 l'lisa Gl\L.\S



Representativp of an int~~~~~~0ntal organization:

Inter-iUnerican Commission of Women

Representatives of non-governmental o~anizations:

Category !1
International Confederation of Free

Tr.'ade Union,g

Internation~l Federation of Christian
Trade Unions

World Feè.aration of United Nations
Associa;;ions.

,Çategory_!!

Catholic Inte:-:-ne.t.ional Union for Social Service

International Alliance of WOblen

Internationa1 Council of Women

International Federatton HAmies de la Jeune Fille"

Internati0nal Federation of Business and
Professionnl Women

International Federation of University Women

International Federation of Women Lo.wyers

International League for the Rights of Man

Internat:onal Union for Ohild Welfare

Liai80n Cooonittee of Women's International
Organizations

Women's International League for Peace and
Frecdom

World Federation of Catholio Young Women and
Girls

World union of Cath01ic Women's Organ1zations

World Young Wo~en's Christian Association

B:~:hs~~

Open Door InternationaJ.

Soroptimist IntcrnaticnaJ. Asscciation.

E/CN.6/SR.224
page 3

Miss LUTZ

Mrs. EIŒNDAHL

Ydss NAGELS
fus. SCHMIDT

fus. KRETSCHHER

Miss BOSMANS
Miss HERTOGHE
Miss de RŒ1ER

fus • CHOISY-NECKER

Mrs. CARTER
Miss van EEGHEN

fus. WOOD

Mrs. FINIDORI
M1ss TOMLINSON

Mrs. FIECH'I!ER
Miss ROBB

LadyCHATrERJEE
Mi GS MANFREDINI

fus. vJOLIE-EGE:NOLF

Mrs. SMALL

Miss van EEGHEN

:rœs. BAER

Mis s lIERREN

Miss de ROl-mn
Miss THUAN

Miss ARNOLD

Mrs. BAER

Miss WIND



E/CN.6/SR.224
page 4

Representatives of non-governmental organizations (contlnued)

St. Joan's International Social and
Politloal Alliance

World Association of Girl Guides and
Girl Scouts

Secretariat:

Mrs. Tenison-Woods

Mrs. Grinberg-Vinaver

Miss CHALLONER
Mrs. KINSELIA

Mra. BUGNION-SECRETAN

Representative ot the
Seoretary-General

Secretary to the Commission



E/CN.6/SR.224
page 5

ECONOMIC OPPORTUNITIES FOR WOMEN (item 7 of the agenda) (continued):

(f) Working 'women, inc1uditig working mothers, ~th family responsib1lit1es,
and means for the improvement of their position

The CHAIRMAN invited the Commission to continue 1ta consideration of

the question of working women with family responsibilities.

Dame Lucile SAYERS (Unitéd Kingdom) Said that out of 'a total wr1d.ng

population of 23,869,000 in areat'Britain in June 1955, 7,811,000 had been women.
'Under the National Insurance Act of 1946, as amended by later Acta, and

subject to certain statutory exceptions, every person in Great Britain over

school-leav1ng age and under pensionable age was insm:ed. Married women and

widows, however, were genera11y free to decide whether to pay contributions or

not.

The following benefits were avai1able under the Acts: unemployment',

aickneas and maternity benefit (including maternit y grants, home confinement

grants and materni ty allowances), widows' beliefit (including widowa t a11owànoes,

w1dowed mothers' allowances and widows' pensions), guardians' allowaneea,

retirement pensions and death grants. Extra unemployment and s1eknes8 benet1ta

were payable to married women Bupport1ng inva1id husbands, children or dependent

adults.

Matërnity benefits had been increased in 1954. The maternity grant was

~O, an extra ~4 being payable to women confined ut home or elsewhere et their

own expense. Working women also received a maternity a110wance of ~ a week,

norma11y for 'aper1od of 18 ~eeks beginning 11 weeks before the expeoted week

of confinement. W~~en with dependants were e~titled to higher al1owances.

At the end of 19~3, about ,465,000 widows had been receiving benafite

varying according to age and the number of dependent ch1ldren.

Under the Fami1y Allowancoa Acta of 1945 and 1952, 8 shillings u week was

pa1d for each ch11dafter the e1dest. In 1953, about 3,250,000 families were

benet1ting from auch a11owances.

Thus, the National !nsurunce and Fam11y A110wances Acts made special

provision for the working woman With fami1y responslbi1itles, whether in the

torro 'Of ch11dren'o~ d~pendent adu1ts. Persons with heavy responslbilit1es or

1im1ted resourceawere a1so eligible for national 'assistance.



E/CN.6/SR.224
page 6

In add1tion, the looal authorltles provided a variety ot services or speo1~

praotical beneflt to working wQmen with fam11y responsibilities: midwitery

servioes, ohild and infant weltare services (including vis1ta to children's homes

during the t1rst year ot life), schoo1 medica1 attention, sohoo1 mea1s, the "home·

he1p" system and services for the aged and intirm.

Mrs. BEN-ZVI (Israel) said that, a1though a oertain amount ot overlapp1ng

was inevitable and, at times, even desirab1e, there wes a danger ~th SO vast a

subject that the discussion might dritt lnto matters • such as the prob1em. ot

film and te1evlsion programmes unauitab1e for children - wh1ch were important

enough in themselves, but not striot1y relevant to the topie under disoussion.

Ber de1egation accordlngly cons1dered that the exact scope of the sub-item

ahould be clearly deflned by the Commission, after studyof the materia1 provided

by the International Labour Organisation. Tb that end it proposed that the

discussion nt that session be confined to consideration of the draf~ resolution

already submitted. She wished, however, to reserve the right to speak aga1n,

ahould her delegation's proposa1 not be adopted.

The CHAIRMAN proposed that the general discussion continue until the

text of the draft reaolution was nvai1ab1e.

It wes so agreed.

Mrs. SPIRlDONOVA (Union of Soviet Social1st Republics) welcomed the

fact that a question which affeoted the interests of vast masses of working

women had been p1aced on the agenda. As could be seen from the Materiel

submitted to the Commission on the subject of economic opportunities for women,

there were millions of mothers in employment and the percentage of' working women

with tWO-fold responsibil1ties was steadi1y 1ncreasing. There were even cases

in whioh the woman was the only breadwinner in the fom11y.

Clear1y, therefore, desp1te the fact that uneconomic expend1ture on sueh

items as armements sometimes forced women to take up employment which showed no

real economic return to the nation, women with fam1ly responsibil1ties undoubtedly

played a large part in the economic life of a11 countries. Acoording to data

published by the United Nations Educationa1, Scientific and Cultural Organ1zatlon

(UNESCO) basad on a survey of 13 million families in France, women in one yenr

put in 46,000 million hours of work in d1scharging their tamily responsib11it1ee.

as compared with 42,000 million hours of work put in by government employees.

The same must be true of other countries as well.



E/CN. 6/SR. 224
page 7

The Commission ahould therefore make it 1ta concern ta defend working

women with tamily reaponsibilit1es, and working mothers 1n partiou1ar, aga1nst

discrimination. It shou1d draft recommandations to member and non-member States

to ensure that such women worked on an equal footing with men in a1l fields of

the economy, and to protect their hea1th and general interests.

The Commission should give no credence ta speciouB propaganda presenting the

mother as queen of the home aurrounded by washing machines, television and every

modern conveniencè, but aotually implying that \VOIll8ll was an inferior member of

sooiety woae sole place 'WaS in the home. Such propaganda mere1y served the

interests of unscrupulous employers. The working mother had the right to work

and to protection against discrimination by employers. She ahould enjoy

prlvileges appropr1ate to her position and due regard should be pald to her health•.

It ahould be borne in mind in that connexion that mnny countries still had no

tullY-developed social security system and that the position was at its warst in

trust and non-self-governing territor1es whare the death rate among women and

children was exoeptionally high.

In the Soviet Union, working women ~th family responsibilitieswere entltled

under the Constitution ta State protection, security of employment, and special

maternit y benefits. Pregnant women enjoyed one hundred dayst leave on full pay.

Maternity homes, chi1d welfare clinics, and home weltare visitors, similar to

those mentioned by the United Kingdom representative, were provided for them.

Every village now hud some kind of facility for mothers in chl1dbirth. Under

takinga were obliged to allow nursing mothers time to teed their children twice u

de.y, wi thout any sacrifice of eurnings. Pregnant women and mothera with small

chl1dren could not be dismissed. There were also special allowances and layette

grants to mothers at confinement. A vast network of crèches, dey nurseries end

playgrounds had been established to assist working mothers, whose children were

entitled to spend two months in a holiday camp each summer, :t'ree of charge except

in the case of mothers in the higheat income brackets.

That did not mean, however, that the problem had been completely solved.

Still further measures were requ1red to assist the working mother. Under the

s1xth Five-Year Plan, beginning that year, the lot of such women would be lightened

by an i~crease in supplies of domestic appliances, and in the number ot retail

shops, by a 50 per cent inorease in the number of oommunal restaurants and a 75 par

cent increase in supplies of prepared meals to homes, quite apart from the sohool

meals system.



E/CN. 6/SR. 224
page 8

The facilities established by the trade uni0ns for the children of work1ng

mothers, includlng clubs and no less than 90,000 children's libraries, were to

be greatly extended.

Widows' pensions were to be raisod, more facilitics provided for post

graduate education, and special facilities to enablo working women to take

university degrees while working. In all, 210,000 million roubles were to be

spent on social measures under the latest Five-Year Pl~.

Rer delegat1on, always anxious to learn of measures taken in other countr1es

which might be app11ed in its own, had beon Most interested in the statement by

the United Kïngdom repre~entative. It weuld readily support any Moye to enuble

the Commission to study the problem mo:,o thoroughly and any measure calculated

to improve the lot of working women with family responsibilities.

Mrs. CHU (China) a1so welcomad the placing of sub-item 7(f) on the

agenda. The five-fold responsibility of the working mother - to herself, to her

husband, to her children, to society and to the family as a whole aS a bread

winner - was a very heavy burden on her, making it nocessary to grant her special

protection and treatment in Many respects. Until the.idenl state of society

was reached, in which wemen with young children would not need to work outside

the home for purely economic reasons, the problem of werking mothers would have

to be faced.

In her own country, various measures hnd been taken to assist working

mothers. Under the Labour Law, health and maternity services were provlded f~r

women employees and their childron, frec of charge, by factories, government

services and schools. With the steady expansion of the labour insurunce soheme

introduced during the past few years, it wns hoped to provide still wider

coveruge for women. Under tho existing Fuctory Law, wemen employees in

factories received eight weeks! maternity loave, on full puy after six months l

employment and on half-puy aftc:r emploY1Jlûnt l'm.' u ShO~'t.0l" periotl. Similul'

maternity leave wus granted in Many othor professions. Nurseries had beon set

up in factories, community housing projects; fishing and salt-producing villages

and rural communities, to take cure of the ohildren of ~omen workers, and over

43,000 children under school age were ulreudy bcing cored for in thut wny. Half

of the number went ta the "agricultUi-al è.istrict nur.'3e:L'ies". Although thoso

nurseries were open only during the perions cf field ~~rk, the fact thut two or



EjCN.6jSR.224
page 9

thrae crops were hnrv~sted in the year in, Taimn meant that they wore open

nearly a11 the ysar. There had been 171 suah agricultural distriot nurseries

in 1955, and 189 more'were to be opened in 1956, mostly by local Quthorities
.. ,

with the assistance of Bubsid1es from the provincial governments.

Worldng mothers engaged in the cottage industries of Taiwan had g1ven an

exoellent example of aelt-holp by org~ni 71ng and building thoir own weltare

tacilit1és, and nurseries in particular, out of the1r own exiguous resources.

Th1rteen such nurseries, tak1ng oare of over one thousand ch11dren, bad been

built by one 'WOlnen's orga.n1zat1on alone in 1955 in the very oommunity in wb.ioh

=he hereaU lind.

Tomeot the demand for tra1ned nursery staff, short-term and in-service

training courses had been arranged by 'WOmen's organ1zat1ons. Much remained ta

be done, however; more and botter facil1tios and more trnined wrkers were still

needed. Fortunntoly, the efforts of the ~men were enjoying Mdde public support

fr9m bath sexes.

She would like to add t'WO suggestions to those alrondy harore the Commission.

The tiret wnsthat the public, and especially employers, should bo brought te

rea11ze that working mothers bore a heavier reaponsibility than other aections

of the employed, nnd w~e therefore ent1tled to special mensures in the1r tavaur.

Employara,in partioular, should not be ellowed to discr1m1nate against women

npp11cnnts tor jobs or against WOlnen workere poseessing identical qualifications

with men, marely hecauae employing thern would put the employers to greater

trouble and expense. The second suggestion ws that, where they had not done so

already, wom~n workers ahould band together in aseooiotions to safeguard their

intorests an4 promote the1r welters. Such associations would not compote with

tho trade un1onB. On the contrary, thoy would be supplementnry to then and, in

t1mo, come to Btrongthen thorn.

MrB. IEFAUCHEUX (France) said tha.t she had not haard ot the 1nqu1ry

which the Soviet Union represontat1ve said had been made in France ta astab11sh

the number ot hours worked by women in the home. Such an 1nquiry 'WOuld 1n nny

case be very dlft1cult to oarry out sat1staotor11y. It wns of coursa common '

lœowledge that houBohold taska could be sa onerouB aa ta prevant a woman taking

up uny outs1de employment, but that wns a general phenomenon in no way peoullar
1:0 France.



E/CN .. 6/SR. 224
pûge 10

It was disquiot1ng ta heer day nursories and film exhibitions d1scusBed in

the Commission. Those were very intorost1ng topies, but they came rather within

the purv1ew of the Soclal Commission, whieh ahould be left ta deal with them.

It would be dangerouB for the Commission on the Statua of W~en ta go outs1de ft!

terms of referenee.

Mrs. NOVIKOVA (Byeloruss1an Soviet Socia11~t Republio) said that

eminent soc1010g1sts had recogni"ed tho port played by worldng women in 1nspiring

movements for sooial progross nnd the defenoe of human rlghts. Although the

expansion of industry und agrioulture throughout the world mnde i t neoeasary for

women to take ~rk in 1ncreasing numbers, very confl1et1ng v1ews wora held about

their position in society and the family, Œlld aS ta how they oould be assisted

by governments. In her valuable statement, the Polish representative had

pointed out the way in which a vital issue should be npproached.

Clearly, when women were given equul rights with men, 1t must be borne in

mind by governments and by trade-union and other orgnnizat10ns that working

women had family responsibilities and were therefore entitled ta favourable

conditions of work as well aS maternity benefits, They hud long enjoyed auch

oonditions in the Byelorussian Soviet Sociolist Republic, where lnrga SumB ware

approprioted for special allowances and the provision of a free med1cal sa:v1ce

for working mothers. In recent years, apart from the extensive building ot

various medical and public heolth institutions, the number of doctora hud greatly

increased, considerable successes hod been ochieved in preventive medicine and

thera had been a decline in infunt mortn1ity. Boardlng schools ware ulso to

be provided, where children whoso paronts could not offord the fees would

reoeive the education free. Thoy would bo built in healthy surround1ngs and

would be equipped with spaoious dorrn1tories and closs-rooms ua weIl aS fucil1tie8

for out-of-school aotivities, so that the children would huve evorything they

needed for their physical und mental development. Thot wus on example ot the

k1nd of mensures which overy BOvernmont ought to toko to enable ~men to take

outside employment with a quiet mind, in the knowledge thut everyth1ng wns be1ng

done to bring up their ohildren in the most suituble conditions.



:œ/CN.6/SR.224
page 11

In the Byelorussian Republio lecture rooms were often attached te schools,

where talks were given for parents on subjects connected with the upbr1ng1ng of

children and education. There were a number ot publishers spec1a11zing in

ehildren's books, and special programmes for mothers and children were a teature

of cinemas and telev1s1on. Establishments for young p10neers organized atudy

groups on var10us subjects to occupy children in their leisure hours and often

made 1t possible to discover 1n \·;hicl! d1rection a particular ehUd'a talents 1ay,

Ch11dren's I1brar1es had aiso been opened 1n all towns, country centres, collect1ve

tarma and industrial enterprises. She mentioned those facts because she could

not agree witt those speakers who denied the important contribution libraries,

the cinema and televis10n could make to education.

Obv1ously the lives of working women could be made mueh eas1er by the

provision of modern household app11ances to llghten the burden Of arduous and

repetitious houBework.

In conclusion, she said that 1t would he very valuable if the Secretariat

could obtain detn1led intormntion from governments and Bpec1alized agencies about

legls1ative Œnd other mensures taken for the protection of work1ng women and

their children. Thnt would make 1t mueh aasler for the Commission to frome

practical recommendationa.

The CHAIRMAN, speaking aS represent~tive of Sweden, soid a in reply to

the French representntivo's contention that it would be difficult to make a study

of the time taken up by housework, that such a study had bean BuccessfUlly

carrlad out in Sweden by a Royal Commission appo1nted to examine the dut1es and

responsib1lities of housewtves. Tho information had bean collected by the seme

techniques as thoso omployed for industrial work studies. In addition, an

attempt hnd been mude to nssass in terms of industriel wugas, the value of work. ,
done in tho home. The inquiry had embraced the cases of working women with one

or more children, and had taken into aocount the nmount of modern household

equipmont they possessed.

Anothor study, relnting ta equal pay, hod been made by the Swadish

Confederation of Trade Unions 1n oonjunction with the Employers~ Federation, in

an attompt to estoblish the reason for tha h1gher incidenoe ofnbsentee1am nmcng

women in lndustry. Details had bean collected about work1ng women's domeatie

responslbl1it1es, and what help thoy rece1ved trom ether members of the1r ramily.



E/CN.6/SR.224
page 12

She would have thought that 1t 'WOuld be useful to sUIIlJ!IB.r!ze the tindings ot auah

inqulries, because they would help to indlcate what kind of action was needed.

Mrs. BEN-ZVI (Israel) agreed that it would be valuable to obtain such

information both from the International Labour Office (110) and from any country

which could provide it.

Miss CHALLONÉR (St. Joun's International Social end Politienl Alliance);

speaklng nt the invitation of the CHAIRMAN, expressed anx1ety about the turn the

discussion was taking. Rer organization, whose aima were knownto members,

sympnthl'Zed with efforts to ease women's dnily tasks, but the Commission wes surely

not the body to diseuss the problems of working women with family respons1b111ties

or to listen to detailed expositions of the menns taken to improve their position

in various eountries. The purpose of the Co:mm1ssl. on was to secure equal1ty of

opportunity for women, in other wordsu fair field and no favour, and it would be

regrettable if the Commission were to join those who, in seeking to protect

women, in effect damaged their position.

In the absence of further speakers, the CHAIRMAN declared the general

discussion on item 7 (tl of the agenda closed.

(a) Prelim1nary mernnrnndum concerning a survey of publications available on the
occupational outlook of women in the fields of health, social weltare,
engineering and architecture (E/CN.6/L.189)

Mrs. HAHN (United States of America) thanked the Secretariat for its

preliminary memorandum (E/CN.6/L.189) survûying the publications available on tho

occupational outlook for women in the fields of health, Bocial weltnre, engineering

and architecture. It was apparent from that memorandum that valuable information

wus available, and her delegation had intended to propose n study, for

consideration at the eleventh session, of two professions, one in whlch women had

tradltionally been employed, such as nursing, and one which they were now entering

for the tirst time, such as enginc.v:i.'i:.:u ; 1u.t li:; now seemed that fi broader atudy

than that originally contemplated nt the previous session was under consideration.

Such an approach should yield useful rcsults.

The fOur occupations covered by the Secretariat's memorandum were all

professions in whlch the damand for quelified personnel of both sexes far exceeded

the supply, so that a study of ·~umen's o;portunities in thoae fields would be

particularly helpful l not only for the economically more advanced countries, but



E/CN.6/sn,224
pag0 13

also for thase which were in tho eo.:·J.y stages of 1nc~w,trial deveJ.cpment, since

i t would encourage womeu "(,0 ca~;:'3 up thosa :;Jrofo~~ic::s and ;.rould draw the attention

of governme~ts to the importance of prov~ding t~em with e~ual cpportun1ties with

men both for training' and for emI: ~ ~~r.::ent.

In the United States cf funer.: na tIn ntunb8r of 1,JOmen engi.neers had increased

signif1cently in recent YOars: in 1940, there had been 730 out of' a total of

250,000 pro:;:"essional ongineers, ~;!.lor8é1':" _. ,.;. S;:;CJ tilc.:.'e had bSiÙ 6, '~75. During

that decad0 j tho number of w~m8n e~ginocrs had in~roased ninefold, w~ereas that

of male engineers rad GnJy Lo~bled. NovertheJess, engineering was otill

predominantly a m~n'a profe6z~on, and wom8n only constituted 2per cent of the'

total number.

The 1-Jcmen' El Bureau of tho De,p0rtm'Snt of' Labor had IlIaJ'3 i,1,.:o s·::,un.i '3S of the

occuputional outlook fel' tI1"Omen in engi~oering, the 1:'1'':;;-:j in 1947 é1.~à the second

The le:'~or ~a1 be'3n supplE:':lcn"ted b~' inf"o:-rJ1..ati:'1 ctta. -.::od th!'oug:h. a

questionnai:c'J H8Qt ta ::18n'.bers of -;~1Î:J 86do7.y of 1.;'0':18n Engineers i "Tho r.ad reported

~~lQt Sooiety vm8 a new

orgunization, i':":"1dod ill ::"950, aI'.cl ';;}:e que1if'icaM.ons for membo!'shi.p - a collage

degreo in onr;ine:-'."'2G, or u mtnimtllll of six yea:-o' raid emr1oy:ment at a level of El.

graduate engineor, c:: è~ collage Gegree in a rolate~ scien2':':::'ic field, auch as

urchitect.ul'e or the phyoj ,:,r:l ~H~'~E\n~8s) plus 8:~ loas"\j~,~o years of eng:neering

experience at t:r.o :r;1:'af'38,: ~0':".",l le7E'l - wero indicath'p c.:' th') kind of standards

expected of WOll':'ll "t·:ho ~!or0 sC13king to Hcqu:Lre e~tlal opportunit~8a with men· for

employment and pro:n.ot5.on in u hiC:üj' skilled prcfe:flion. She montioned those

facts in arder ta bring eut the i ;;11'01. tan:::e of includir.g j n allJT study undertaken

by the Com:nission inforIr.f1tion on ·v:.aini:ng :requirs:ncnta, ana. oi' <1efining terms so

that the in:Cerrnat.ion from diffC'!'ont cc':'ntriA3, in soma- of ·.;hi.r.tthe ter;n "engineer
ll

was ruthûr loog0'~' aprl::'od to uny J)o:::'50n vl0rlcinG with mJ.chinery, "tvaS comparable.

Mi os LU,:-Z (:rc1~G"l.:' -./\.-::.oricall Comrr.iss.J.on cf vToL1on) 1 speak' .'g nt the invitation

of the CIUltl~) ro~rottod thut tho rep~esGntative of the Internaticnal Federation

of Univorsi ty Wo:non .Jh0'J'.Ù. not hnvo giVG:-. [>:'.:: da....·.a on Draz,il in her statement at

the previous moct ing, 8:~.nce the f lrst Presi dont of '~he Fen 8ra~,.;.on1e b-ro.nch in

Brazll had be8n Olla of thn iï::'s's Hom,"'n to gruduClt-, tn c-~711 eng:l:reering in thut

country.



E/CN.6/SR.224
page 14

She had been particularly interested by the United States representative's

statement, beoause conditions in that country w9re very sim11ar to those in

Br~zil, where there was an association of women arohitects and civil engineers.

Women had begun taklng civil engineering degrees some 35 years eurlier. They

could not be employed either as engineers ~ architeots ~thout adegree. ThoUgh

she oould give no figures, she could state that there were a number of women

civil engineers in Rio-de-Janeiro, for eXlllllple, one wns in charge of a whole

district and another in oharge of part of the wuter supply, and there was a woman

d1rector of oity planning.

Stressing the importance of the Secretariat's prelirninary memorandum,

Miss BERNARDINO (Dominican Republic) said that a detailed study should be made

~ prospects of employment for women in the fields of health, social welfare,

engineering and architeoture. The International Labour Office had po1nted(1)

out that auah a study wuld serve the dual purpose of informing countries of naw

openlngs in other countries for women wishing to work in those fields, and of

encouraging the publication of studies on vocational guidance with regard to

auoh openinga. It was therefore to be hoped that the Commission would press

tor a tuller survey of the question.

She had been deeply interested by the statement of the representative ot

the Inter-American Commission of Women. The Domin1can Republic was proud ot
the part played by wmen engineers and architects in the erect10n ot some ot har

country's most modern buildings.

Mrs. BEN-ZVI (Israel) said that women ehou.ld also be enoouraged to

become engineers and architects because they were partioularly well-f1tted to

Understand the needs of housewives, both in the field of domestic arohitecture

and town planning.

Dame Lucile SAYERS (United Kingdom) sald that in hor country oareers

.otticers were attached to provinoial officos·of the Mlnistry of Labour, and they

had obsèrved a growing interest in the part of wemer in suah professions aS

engineering and arcbi tecture during the past t\<lO yeo.rs.

Further discussion of item 7 (a) of the agenda waB deferred.

(1) See: E/CN.o/L.189, para. 4.



E/CN.5/SR,224
:page 15

(0) Report on the Employment conditions ot older women workers
(E/CN.6/284)

The CHAIRMAN asked whother there were any further obsorvat±ons on

eub-item 7 (c).

Mrs, FIGUEROA (International Labour Organisation) reoalled that she

had already had occasion to express the International Labour Organisat1on'B

viewpoint on the subject of m1nimtLm pensionable age, It might be useful in

that connexion to reter to the discussions at the firet European Regional

Conference of the International Lo.bour Organisation, held at Genova et the

beg1nn1ng of 1955. In cons1der1ng the age at wh1ch a worker sho~ld normally

be entitled to a pension, it had been found that the pens10nable age generally

lay betweon 60 and 70 but that thore were variations from country to country

and that flexibility in the pens10nable age was a feature of many national

pens10n schemes. Various draft proposals had been submitted by government,

e.mployers' and workers' representatives, some of wh1ch favoured a pens10nable

age of 60, others 65; the workers' delegates t draft proposal had suggested

that the pens10nable age for women should be about five years lower than that

for men, and the United Kingdom Government representative hnd suggested a sim11ar

provision. The resolution f1nally adopted Was basad on the text prepared by

the Secretariat, in which no dual pensionabla age wes proposed and in Wh1ch the

minimum pensi~nable age was tixed wi thin the range of 60 t6 65 years, bearing

in mind national ditferencea in the effective éarn1ng capacity of the average

worker aged 60 or more and in the number of years dur1ng which he might expeot

to enjoy hie pension. An amendment was introduced oy the workers' delegate ot
Franae, fixing the minimum pensio~able aga for women rive yeara below that for

men. This amendment WB cc.rried by 70 votes to 18.

Mrs. LEFAUCHEUX (France) thanked Mrs, Flgueroa for the explnnat10ne

she had giv6n the Commission. She waB surprised that the Commission had not

bean consulted in a matter of vital concern to it, or aven informed earller 01'

the existence of the resolut1on, which was of paramount importanoe to 1ts work.

The Commission should bear in mind the lesson to be learned from that

experience whan 1t came to organ1:z.a its work for tuture years.



E/CN. 6!SR. 224
pQge 16

Miss BERNARDINO (Dominicnn Republic) thnnked Mrs. Figueroa for her

stntement, which showed that thera was definite discrimination against women,

in flagrant contradiction of the pr1nciples of the Charter of the United Nations

and the Universal Declaration of Human Rights. It was the Commission's dutY to

press for equality of r1ghts in all spheres, and te take fi stand against the

resolution of the European Regional Conference of the International Labour

Organisation. She proposed that that part of the Commission's summary records

dealing with the quostion of retirement age be communicated to the International

Labour Organisation for information. She did not think it necessary to draft a

resolution on the subject; but note might be taken of the Organisation1s

attitude in the Commission's report.

The CHAIRML\N intimnted that [letion 1olOuld be taken on the Dominican

Republic reprosentative 1 s suggestions.

Mrs. FIGUEROA (International Labour Organisation) agreed with

Mrs. Lefaucheux that the specialized ngencies and United Nations and other

international organs should maintain the closest possible contact with a view to

mutual assistance. At the sarne time, the principles underlying resolutions and

international instruments were frequently to a greuter or lasser extent a

reflection of national po11cies. It might perhapB be useful as a first step to

ensure that the governmants of the various countries adopted integrated pol1e1es

at national level. A considerable step forward might be made if countries could

co-ordinate national po11cios.

Miss BERNARDINO (Dominican Republlc) did not share Mrs. Figueroa's

sentiments. If cll women in all countrles had had first of 0.11 to secure the

formulation of uniform prlnciples in rospect of womenls rights, they would nover

have got the benefit of what the Comndssion hud achieved at international level.

Mrs. LEFAUCHEUX (France) also disngreed with l'1rs. Figuerou. It 'WOuld

be dangerous to try to make internatiorrG1 u~tion depandent on action at national

1eve1. The Commission must discharge 1ts task independently of national action,

but its members must of course spur on auch action in their respective countries

with the object of securing acceptance for the Commission's findings.

Further discussion of item 7 of th~ agonda wnS deferred.

The meeting ~at 1.20 p.m.




